ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 12, 2015
8:13 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative David Tal erico
Representative Liz Vazquez
Representative Loui se Stutes
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S) :

ALASKA PUBLI C OFFI CES COW SSI ON

Mark Fish - Big Lake, Al aska
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

STATE COW SSI ON FOR HUMAN RI GHTS

Kat hryn Dodge - Fairbanks, Al aska
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

PARCLE BQOARD

Ri chard A e Larson - Pal ner, Al aska
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

ALASKA POLI CE STANDARDS COUNCI L

Gust af Sandahl - Kenai, Al aska
Rebecca Hanon - King Sal non, Al aska

- CONFI RVATI ON('S) ADVANCED

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 12, 2015



LI EUTENANT GOVERNOR SUCCESSOR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N S) :
- HEARD

STATE COW SSI ON FOR HUMAN RI GHTS
- HEARD

PARCLE BOARD

ALASKA POLI CE STANDARS

LI EUTENANT GOVERNOR SUCCESSOR
Crai g Fleener - Anchorage, Al aska

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER

MARK FI SH, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Bi g Lake, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to APCC.

KATHERI NE DODGE, Appoi nt ee

State Comm ssion for Human Rights

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the State
Comm ssion for Human Ri ghts.

Rl CHARD OLE LARSON, Appoi nt ee

Par ol e Board

Departnent of Corrections

Pal ner, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Parol e Board.

GUSTAF SANDAHL, Appoi nt ee
Al aska Police Standards Council (APSC)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 12, 2015



Department of Public Safety
Kenai, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the APSC.

REBECCA HAMON, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Police Standards Council (APSC)

Department of Public Safety

Ki ng Sal non, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the APSC.

CRAI G FLEENER, Appoi ntee

Li eut enant Gover nor Successor

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee as Lieutenant
Gover nor Successor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:13: 15 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
meeting to order at 8:13 a. m

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S) :
ALASKA PUBLI C OFFI CES COVM SSI ON
STATE COVM SSI ON FOR HUMAN RI GHTS

PAROLE BOARD
ALASKA POLI CE STANDARS
LI EUTENANT GOVERNOR SUCCESSOR

8:13:41 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced the first order of business was the
confirmation hearing for the Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion.

8:14:11 AM

The committee took an at-ease from8:14 a.m to 8:15 a.m
8:15:53 AM

MARK FI SH, Appointee, Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQOC)

stated that he had not solicited to serve, but was asked to do
SoO. He likened the calling to serve on the conm ssion as being

called to serve on a jury. He stated he could pursue his
interest in "a free and fair society" through a position on
APCC., M. Fish noted that his resune was in the comittee

packet, and he highlighted sone noteworthy points fromit. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 12, 2015



said he served for five years on the State Comm ssion for Human
Rights, which was also a sem-judicial body that required
| egi sl ative confirmation. He encouraged the conmmttee to review
his years of service on that comm ssion through the mnutes
avai l able, which he said he thought would show that he had
executed his commission "with integrity and honor." M. Fish
said he also served on the Citizens' Advisory Comm ssion for
Federal Areas, and for the last two terns was elected by his
fellow conmm ssioners as vice chair. He offered to answer
guesti ons.

8:18: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated that he was the chair of the
Citizens' Advisory Comm ssion for Federal Areas; therefore, he
could vouch for M. Fish's integrity, willingness to work as a
team and t houghtful ness.

8:18:37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS noted that M. Fish had answered
"yes" when asked on the application whether his service on APCC
could benefit him or his famly, but had witten "no" rather
than answering what the financial benefit mght be. He asked
M. Fish to offer details regarding both answers.

MR. FISH noted that "during prior testinony, soneone else had

that sanme issue cone up." He stated it was not his intent to
put that on there, and he suggested that it my have been a
problem with "the way it's presented on the Internet."” He

stated that he had no financial benefit in serving on APCC,
"outside of being a citizen of Al aska."

8:21:43 AM
The committee took a brief at-ease at 8:22 a.m
8:22:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS noted M. Fish had witten a bl og,
and he asked M. Fish to speak to it. In response to Chair
Lynn, Representative Kreiss-Tonkins explained that he had read
an article, which nmade reference to anti-fem ni st quotes nade by
M. Fish in the blog, which was no | onger available on line. He
cited [an excerpt fromthe first paragraph of an Al aska D spatch
News article by Lisa Dener, dated March 1, 2012, included in the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 12, 2015



committee packet], which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

Governor Parnell said Thursday he didn't know of
concerns about Mark Fish, his nomnee to a state
conm ssi on t hat def ends i ndi vi dual s from
discrimnation, until information about Fish's anti-
femnist blog posts in 2009 appeared in the Daily
News.

8:24: 31 AM

MR FISH clarified that the article of contention was in regard
to his support of the appointnent of Wayne Ross as attorney
general by then Governor Sarah Palin. He indicated that in [his
blog], he had noted that radical femnists opposed M. Ross'

nom nati on. He said he was speaking of a person who had
testified, but he had not thought it fair to reveal the nane of
the private citizen. He noted that the person had previously

opined that the world would be a better place w thout nen, which
he said he considered radical fem nism He continued:

| felt that | had the lack of Governor Parnell's
support in the issue, and any tinme ... | feel that
there's a lack of confidence by the people that

[ have] appointed ne, | was nore than happy to withdraw

my nomnation, which | did then. And | would now,
too, if this governor felt it was an issue.

8:26: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked M. Fish if he had ever filled out
an APOC form

MR FISH affirmed that as a menber of the State Conm ssion for
Human Rights, he had filled out financial disclosures. Further
he said he ran as a state's candidate for office and filled out
the required APOC disclosure forns. He stated that as the
former chair of the Libertarian Party, he had the opportunity to
oversee his treasurer's reports [to APCC . In response to a
foll owup question, he said he thought anyone who has filled out
the reports may have felt a level of frustration. He said he
agreed with the intent of transparency; however, he opined that
there should be an enphasis on "noving into sonething that is a
little nore user-friendly," particularly for people who are not
used to filing such reports. He said he found it difficult to
recruit candi dates because of the reporting.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 12, 2015



8:28:22 AM

CHAIR LYNN offered his understanding that APOC mnust consider
expenditures by candi dates and review any conplaints as conpared
to existing law accordingly. He added, "I don't see where
politics is actually involved in that."

8:29: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG offered his understanding that those
who are selected for APOC nust sign paperworKk. He asked M.
Fish if he had done so and whether he had yet entered into
of fice.

MR. FISH replied that the only docunments he received had been
sent via e-mail. He said in particular he received an e-mail
notifying himto attend the current confirmation hearing before
the House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that on M. Fish's application to
APCC, he listed the State Conmm ssion for Human Rights under
"education, training, experience, and qualification." He
referred to "the situation in 2012," and offered his
understanding that M. Fish had been seeking reappointnment to
the State Conmm ssion for Human Ri ghts

MR, FISH confirnmed that at that tinme, he accepted a request to
serve another five years. In response to a foll owup question
he explained that he had subsequently w thdrawn his nane after
di scussing with the commssion the issues that would be raised
and hearing from the governor's staff that there were concerns
his appointnent would be politically detrinental to the
gover nor.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Fish if he made Governor
Wl ker aware of what had happened.

MR. FISH answered that he trusted the governor to do his own
vetting, and he did not make an issue of it, because his nane
had been forwarded by the Al aska Libertarian Party board and
accepted by the governor.

8:34:34 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 12, 2015



CHAIR LYNN pointed out that Representative G uenberg was asking
guestions pertaining to the State Commi ssion for Human Rights,
but M. Fish was being considered for APCC.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned that he wanted to conpare the
m ssions of both entities. He highlighted witing from the
second through fourth paragraphs of the second page of an
article by Lisa Dener in Al aska D spatch News, dated 2/29/12,
[included in the commttee packet], regarding M. Fish, which
read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Some of his witings during the time he was on the
human rights commssion took jabs at sone of the
groups he was supposed to defend or those who were
seeki ng protection agai nst discrimnation.

In April 2009, Wayne Ross, Palin's nomnee for
attorney general, was under fire. On April 10, 2009,
Fish took on Ross' opponents in a blog post he called,
"fighting the good fight."

Three groups were against Ross, Fish wote, using
guestionabl e English. "These are 1. Native |eaders 2.
Radi cal Fem nist 3. Denobcrat party operativees [sic]."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said M. Fish was "potentially show ng
some bias.” He stated that APOC was a quasi-judicial body,
which tried cases, assessed fines, and held proceedings that
could lead to crimnal prosecution. He asked M. Fish if he
knew t hat .

MR. FISH enphasized he was aware of that. Referring to the
2/29/12 article, he noted that M. Dener wote a subsequent
article, followwng an interview with him which "pretty mnuch
clarified any questions that she had." He remarked that as a
citizen, he was allowed to have opinions, but as a conm ssioner,
he did not allow those opinions to taint his official duty. He
chal l enged anyone to review his five years' service with the
State Comm ssion for Human Rights and find that he had any bias
in any of his statenents or rulings in which he participated.
He stated that he respected the law and followed it.

8:37:58 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered his understanding that M. Fish

was referring to the aforementioned article of 3/1/12. He
directed attention to the second paragraph of the second page of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 12, 2015



that article, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

In one post, he blogged about his unhappiness wth
radi cal fem ni sts, Native |eaders and Denocratic
operatives because of their opposition to Palin's
nom nati on of WAyne Ross as attorney general. Certain
femnists in particular irked him

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Fish if he was "lunping al
t he people who opposed M. Ross' confirmation into one of those
categories.”

MR, FISH indicated that there were two parts to [the blog he had
witten]: a list of those who opposed Wayne Ross' nonination
and his opinion and support of that nom nation. He said he
understood "people threw up concern” regarding his use of the
term "radical femnist"; however, he reiterated that he had been
referring to one individual.

CHAIR LYNN asked M. Ross to reconfirm that he had been
referring to one private citizen - not a group of people.

MR. FISH responded, "I was particularly pointing towards her,
but I'm sure there were other radical femnists out there that
actual ly opposed, too." He challenged any one to find any wonan

he had treated with anything other than the utnost respect. He
relayed that he was close to his two sisters, who considered
t hensel ves femnists, and he was married for 25 years, and he
"never used any foul |anguage to them or never raised a hand to
any." He stated that his father taught himat an early age that
wonen were special and should be treated as such.

8:41: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER questioned the line of questioning. He
said statute clearly instructs the governor to appoint from two
political parties, which he said presunmed that the applicants
put forward would have a political background of sone sort. He
asked Representative G uenberg exactly what he was accusing M.
Fish of through his |line of reasoning.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response, pointed out that the
aforenmentioned quote referred to "femnists" - plural, not
si ngul ar. He brought attention to the paragraph that foll owed
that quote, which read as follows [original punct uati on
provi ded] :

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 12, 2015



Yes folks, elenents of this group actually believe nen
have no value and through science they can elimnate
men from the face of the earth,” Fish wote. I n
another, he took on a proposal before the Anchorage
Assenbly to extend city anti-discrimnation laws to
peopl e who are gay, |esbian, bisexual or transgender.
He said the matter was a "side show' neant to distract
fromthe real issues.

CHAIR LYNN said, "He's expressing a political opinion and sone
of us may have that same opinion."

8:43: 49 AM

MR. FISH said he had expressed his opinions in his blog. He
mentioned an ordinance [proposed by the Minicipality of
Anchorage] that would have included [Lesbian, Gy, Bi-sexual,
and Transgender (LGBT) individuals] as nenbers of a protected
cl ass. He said as a nenber of the State Conm ssion for Human
Rights, there was a four-point criteria to which he adhered, and
"that class did not fit the need for protection under a
protected class." He said he thought the aforenentioned article
hi ghl i ghted hi s opinion on that issue.

MR. FISH pointed out that he served 20 years in the Al aska Arny
National Guard, during which The Hatch Act prevented him from

fully participating politically. After that, he nmade a
commtment never again to let his free speech be suppressed. He
assured M. Guenberg, "Wuatever position | serve in, ny
opinions are going to be known to the public, and they'll be

j udged by the public, and I'm happy with that."
8.45:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG reenphasi zed that M. Fi sh, i f
confirmed to APCC, would be sitting as a judge in cases that
woul d have a major effect on people running for office. Sone of
those people may be Native |eaders, radi cal fem ni sts,
Denocratic Party operatives, and nenbers of the LGBT conmunity.
He said he was not aware that anyone who went before that
tribunal would have a right to a preenptory challenge of any
menber on APCC. He rem nded M. Fish of The Canons of Judici al
Et hics, under which he would be bound, which state that judges
must avoid even the appearance of inpropriety, and he questioned
whet her any of the aforenentioned citizens mght have doubts as
to whether M. Fish could be fair and inpartial.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 12, 2015



MR. FISH answered that he thought his record showed that he
could treat people fairly and inpartially.

8:47: 46 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked Representative Guenberg if he believed that
anyone who had opposed the aforenentioned ordinance should be
disqualified from APOC or any other [conm ssion]. He pointed
out that there was a simlar bill in the legislature, and he
asked if anyone who voted against it would be disqualified from
an appoi nt nent by the governor.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his belief that each case would
have to be judged on its own nerit. He asked M. Fish if he
woul d step down from any cases in which the focus was on, for
exanple, a person from the Denocratic Party, or if he would
continue his involvenment in them

MR. FISH reiterated that he thought his record showed that he
could serve inpartially. He said the best thing to do was to
follow the law, which was blind; therefore, it would not matter
who canme before him because he would focus on whether or not
that person was in violation of the |aw

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if M. Fish would step down from
a case if the accused who cane before APOC either asked him
personally or through council to do so, based on M. Fish's
previously stated views.

MR FISH answered that he wuld not allow the public to
mani pul ate the process to that extent; however, iif fellow
commi ssioners nade that request, he would follow their advice.
CHAIR LYNN comrented that he would not want a Denocrat going
before APOC to ask a Republican to recuse hinfherself or vice
ver sa.

8:.52:25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked M. Fish if he had |ooked at the
statutes that cover APCC.

MR. FISH answered that he had given them a cursory review and

considered them to be a technical reference tool. I n response
to a followup question, he said he did see a need to clarify
t hose statutes. For exanple, he said there had been question

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 12, 2015



over whether a "paid for by" disclosure had to be nade for a
balloon with a nessage on it, because he indicated the answer
may have been different depending on whether the balloon had
been inflated or deflated. He said, "I think that kind of
anbiguity is ridiculous.”

8:53: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to advance the confirmation of WMark
Fi sh, Appointee, Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion, to the joint
session for consideration.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed.
8:55: 06 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Talerico, Stutes,
Kel l er, Vazquez, Kreiss-Tonkins, and Lynn voted in favor of the
notion to advance the confirmation of Mark Fish. Representative
Gruenberg voted against it. Therefore, the notion passed by a
vote of 6-1.

8:55:35 AM
The conmittee took an at-ease from8:55 a.m to 8:57 a.m

STATE COW SSI ON_ FOR HUMAN RI GHTS

8:57:46 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced the next order of Dbusiness was the
confirmation hearing for the State Commi ssion for Human Ri ghts.

8:58: 05 AM

KATHRYN DODGE, Appointee, State Conmission for Human Rights,
stated that she worked wth the University of Alaska's
Cooperative Extension, as the econom c devel opnment specialist,
and she had a Ph.D. in organizational systens, a bachelor's
degree in Organizational Managenent, and an associate's degree

in Electronics and Technol ogy. She posited that the diversity
of her degrees enbodied the diversity of experience that she
would bring to the comm ssion. She explained she applied for

the commi ssion because of her belief in having a neutral body to
turn to when one experienced discrimnation or had been charged
with discrimnation - a body that would listen to both parties
in an effort to cone to a fair and bal anced solution. M. Dodge

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 12, 2015



tal ked about her varied career path, and she related that she
had experienced "significant progress in the workplace in |arger
society." She said that as a nenber of the Fairbanks North Star
Borough Assenbly, she had experience Ilistening to public
comment, participating in quasi-judicial hearings, and nmaking
public decisions. She offered to answer questions.

8:59:37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER thanked Ms. Dodge for being willing to
serve on the comm ssion.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG echoed Representati ve Keller's
senti nent. He said he was particularly inpressed with M.
Dodge' s resune. He asked how Ms. Dodge would have the energy to
serve on the ~conmssion, considering everything else she
currently did.

M5. DODGE responded that she had to consider deeply whether she
would have to resign other boards in order to well-serve the
comm ssion, and she would determne that answer depending on
"the level of effort that it wll take." She noted that her
current enpl oyer supported her appointnent.

9:01: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to advance the confirmation of
Kat hryn Dodge, Appointee, State Conm ssion for Human Rights, to
the joint session for consideration. There being no objection

the confirmation was advanced.

9:01: 55 AM

The commttee took a brief at-ease at 9:02 a. m

PARCLE BQOARD

9:02: 32 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced the next order of business was the
confirmation hearing for Richard O e Larson, Appointee, Parole
Boar d.

9:02: 55 AM

RI CHARD OLE LARSON, Appointee, Parole Board, testified that this
appoi ntment would be his second on the Parole Board. He related

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 12, 2015



that he was a retired superintendent, having spent 29 years in
the Departnent of Corrections. He said he also served as vice
presi dent of the Matanuska-Susitna School Board. He stated he
would like to maintain his position on the Parole Board, because
he felt he was doing good work for the State of Al aska, working
wi th parol ees.

CHAI R LYNN t hanked M. Larson for his years of service.
9:03: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the Parole Board position was
a paid one.

VR. LARSON indicated that board nmenbers received daily
conpensation, as well as conpensation for mleage and for
reading files; however, it was not a paid position wth
benefits. In response to a followup question, he said once a
nonth there was a "parole board run,"” and he received a packet
of parolees ten days prior to that. It took a week to read
those files, which were between 50-200 pages in length. He said
that was two weeks per nonth. He said the board nenbers also
conduct prelimnary hearings of offenders in their districts to
determ ne whether those offenders should get out of jail, go
into a half-way house, or get treatnent. Those offenders cone
before the board about a nonth |ater.

9: 05: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expressed appreciation to M. Larson for
stepping up to address the issues of the board, such as
recidivismrates.

9: 06: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to advance the confirmation of
Richard Ode Larson, Appointee, Parole Board, to the joint
session for consideration. There being no objection, the
confirmati on was advanced.

ALASKA POLI CE _STANDARDS COUNCI L

9: 06: 57 AM
CHAIR LYNN announced the next order of business was the

confirmation hearing for the two appointees to the Al aska Police
St andar ds Counci | .

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 12, 2015



9:07:13 AM

GUSTAF SANDAHL, Appointee, Alaska Police Standards Counci
(APSC), testified that he had al nost 20 years' experience in |aw
enforcement in the state, alnost entirely with the Kenai Police

Depart ment . He said he had been police chief with the Kenai
Police Department since 2008, and had served one term on the
APSC al r eady. He directed attention to his resune, which
reflected that he had spent nost his life in Alaska, had a
bachelor's degree in Crimnal Justice, and was strongly invol ved
in the comunity. He said he felt his experience made it

possible to contribute to the council during his first term He
stated that he enjoyed interacting with the other nenbers of the
council and would appreciate the consideration of the House
State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

9:09: 00 AM

CHAI R LYNN asked M. Sandahl what the nost challenging part of
his job on the council had been thus far.

MR. SANDAHL answered that the nobst significant aspect of serving
on the council was the cases of m sconduct by police officers or
correctional officers and the ensuing decisions that were nmade
as to whether those epi sodes of m sconduct war r ant ed
decertification.

9:10:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to advance the confirmation of
Gust af Sandahl, Appointee, Alaska Police Standards Council, to
the joint session for consideration. There being no objection

the confirmation was advanced.

9:10: 35 AM

The committee took a brief at-ease at 9:11 a.m

9:11: 08 AM

REBECCA HAMON, Appointee, Alaska Police Standards Counci

(APSC), testified that she had served on the council for the
| ast four years in King Sal non and Naknek, where she had worked

for 17 years. In the |last eight years, she stated, she worked
as a legal advocate to victins of donestic violence and sexua
assaul t. She said she worked wth people from severa

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 12, 2015



comunities serviced through the Naknek court district - victins
navigating the court system while dealing with issues such as
life changes, custody issues, and honel essness. She indicated
her involvenment in running a shelter, and she noted that she
wor ked under the supervision of Safe and Fear Free Environnent,
Inc., which was located in D llingham Al aska.

M5. HAMON expressed appreciation that she was being considered
for another term with the council, and she indicated that her
knowl edge of how | aw enforcenment worked was hel pful. She said
she felt she brought another perspective to the table because of
her work with victinms. She offered to answer questions fromthe
conmittee.

9:14: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to advance the confirmation of
Rebecca Hanon, Appointee, Al aska Police Standards Council, to
the joint session for consideration. [There being no objection,
the confirmati on was advanced. ]

LI EUTENANT GOVERNOR SUCCESSCR

9:14: 24 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced the final order of business was the
confirmation hearing for Craig Fleener, Appointee, Lieutenant
Gover nor Successor.

9:14: 56 AM

CRAI G FLEENER, Appointee, Lieutenant Governor Successor, related
that he grew up in Alaska and worked as both a nenber of the
mlitary and a civilian. In the mlitary, he said, he served in
the U S. Marine Corps for four years, and he was currently in
the Al aska National Guard, where he said he continued to | ook
for opportunities to grow and serve. He relayed that he held a
bachelor's degree in Natural Resources Managenent from the
University of Al aska Fairbanks, which he said he thought has
hel ped him gain opportunities in wldlife mnagenent, a couple
years' term on the Board of Gane, and as the director of the
Division of Subsistence within the Al aska Departnent of Fish &

Ganme (ADF&G) . He indicated that following that, he was the
deputy conm ssioner who addressed issues related to wldlife,
subsi stence, and habitat. He stated that he was currently

serving as the Alaska Arctic Policy Advisor.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 12, 2015



MR. FLEENER said he had taken advantage of nany volunteer
opportunities, which had led himto the current opportunity to
serve in the position of Lieutenant Governor Successor. He
stated that it was an honor to be appointed, and he saw it as
one nore way in which he could serve Alaska and bring people
together to work on issues shared by everyone. He stated his
greatest interest in the position would be to enpower Al askans
to vote and to ensure a broad spectrum of support for those
running for political office and inpacting the future of all
Al askans.

9:18:36 AM

CHAI R LYNN t hanked M. Fl eener.

9:18: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to advance the confirmation of Craig
Fl eener, Appointee, Lieutenant CGovernor Successor, to the joint
session for consideration. There being no objection, the
confirmati on was advanced.

9:19:14 AM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:19
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 12, 2015



